FILED
DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX
JAN 2 4 2000

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK,	SUPREME	COURT
BY		
51		

CASE NO. **SCOO-111** DCA CASE **NOS.** 99-01348, 99-01481

UNITED AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE COMPANY

Defendants/Petitioners,

VS.

MARISOL RODRIGUEZ,

Plaintiff/Respondent

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, THIRD DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PETITIONERS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

FOWLER, WHITE, BURNETT, HURLEY, BANICK & STRICKROOT, P.A.
Attorneys for APPELLEES
NationsBank Tower, 17th Floor
100 Southeast Second Street
Miami, Florida 33131-1101
(305) 789-9200

By: STEVEN E. STARK Florida Bar No. **516864**

TABLE OF CONTENT\$

<u>P</u>	<u>'age</u>

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

As reflected in the decision of the District Court below (A1), United Automobile Insurance Company ("United Auto") sought discretionary review from a final summary judgment entered in a Dade County Court action to recover personal injury protection ("PIP") benefits. The County Court had certified the following question, which it determined to be of great public importance:

IN AN ACTION TO RECOVER MEDICAL BENEFITS IN A LAWSUIT UNDER FLA. STAT. § 627.736 WHERE THE ONLY DEFENSE BY AN INSURER IS THAT THE MEDICAL TREATMENT WAS NOT RELATED, NOT REASONABLE AND/OR NOT NECESSARY, MUST AN INSURER OBTAIN THE REPORT REQUIRED UNDER FLA. STAT. § 627.736(7) CONSTITUTING "REASONABLE PROOF" WITHIN 30 DAYS OF RECEIVING WRITTEN NOTICE OF THE FACT OF A COVERED LOSS AND OF THE AMOUNT OF SAME BEFORE IT CAN DEFEND ON THE BASIS THAT THE MEDICAL BILLS ARE NOT REASONABLE, NOT RELATED AND/OR NOT NECESSARY?

The District Court accepted jurisdiction and, on its own motion, consolidated the case with *Perez v. State Farm*, on the basis that both cases presented identical questions of law. (A1, 1-2).

The facts, as set forth in the opinion, are as follows:

I. Facts

A. United Automobile Ins. Co. 9. Rodriguez

Marisol Rodriguez sustained injuries in an automobile accident and made a PIP claim to her insurer, United Auto, on October 1, 1997. United Auto admitted coverage and waived all defenses except as to the reasonableness, relationship, **and** medical necessity of the bills incurred.

On October 17, Ms. Rodriguez submitted her claimed medical bills to United Auto. **As** of November 26, United Auto had not received a report indicating that these claimed medical bills were unreasonable, unrelated, or unnecessary.

On December 17,Ms. Rodriguez submitted more medical bills for payment. On January 16, United Auto submitted Ms. Rodriguez's medical bills for review to a doctor who issued a report to United Auto on January 19, 1998, outside the thirty-day statutory time period.

Ms. Rodriguez sued to recover the amount of the unpaid medical bills plus interest. \S 627.736(4)(b), (c), Fla. Stat. (1997). She moved for summary judgment on the grounds that the insurer had only thirty days from the date of receipt of the medical bills to obtain a report constituting "reasonable proof' that the treatments were not reasonable, related, or necessary and that absent same, the insurer could not defend on that basis, thereby entitling her to final summary judgment.

United Auto conceded that it did not obtain reasonable proof within the thirty-day period and did not raise any coverage defense. However, United Auto argued that the failure to obtain the report did not compel payment of the bills, but only subjected it to paying interest and attorney's fees should liability be established. The trial court entered final summary judgment in favor of Ms. Rodriguez for the amount of the medical bills plus accrued interest and certified the question stated herein.

B. Perez v. State Farm

On March 24, 1996, Ms. Perez sustained personal injuries as a result of an automobile accident. She sought treatment for her injuries and submitted medical bills to State Farm under the PIP coverage of her automobile insurance policy. State Farm failed to pay the bills; Ms. Perez filed a lawsuit against State Farm for payment of these bills.

Ms. Perez moved for summary judgment on the grounds that the defendant had no reasonable proof to establish that it was not responsible for the payment of her claimed medical bills within the thirty-day statutory period. She argued "that failure to obtain such proof within the statutory period means the insurer must pay the bills, in their entirety, at the expiration of the 30-day period."

The trial court entered summary judgment in Ms. Perez's favor, ruling that it is the "responsibility on the **part** of **an** insurer to pay within **30** days absent reasonable proof within that time that they are not responsible for payment." On appeal, the circuit court appellate division reversed the trial court in a two-to-one decision, although State Farm conceded "that it failed to obtain reasonable proof that it is not responsible within the **30**-day period."

(A1, 3-5). In answering the questions presented, the District Court stated:

The answer to the certified question in United Auto's appeal should be abundantly clear based on this court's unanimous *en banc* decision in *Fortune Ins. Co. v. Pacheco*, 695 **So.** 2d 394 (Fla. 3d **DCA** 1997). We answer this certified question with a resounding "yes," based on, now twenty-five years of established law and affirm the final summary judgment entered for Ms. Rodriguez. Based on the same reasoning we quash the Appellate Division decision challenged in Ms. Perez's certiorari petition. . , .

(A1, 5-6). In support of its ruling, the Court found that:

Section 627.736(4)(b), Florida Statutes (1997), provides that PIP insurance benefits "shall be overdue if not paid within 30 days after the insured is furnished with written notice of the fact of a covered loss and of the amount of same." This section also provides that "any payment shall not be deemed overdue when the insurer has reasonable proof to establish that the insurer is not responsible for the payment, notwithstanding that written notice has been furnished to the insurer." The PIP statute clearly requires that the insurer must obtain, within thirty days, a medical report providing "reasonable proof" that it is not responsible for payment. Here, the insurers failed to obtain such a report and, hence, must promptly pay the claim plus accrued interest.

The insurers' contentions that while they failed to obtain a report within the statutory period, they can only be required to pay interest and attorney's fees is not persuasive.

Based on *Pacheco*, the trial court in both cases before us correctly concluded that "reading the PIP statute in pari materia, the insurer must

obtain the required report within 30 days." Having failed to do so, the insurers must pay the claims. The final summary judgment in Ms. Rodriguez's favor is therefore affirmed.

In contrast, the appellate decision in Perez disregarded this court's holding in *Pacheco*. Instead, it followed *Jones v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Co.*, 694 **So.** 2d 165 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997). *Jones*, however, is not dispositive of the issue in this case. *Jones* addressed a summary judgment granted despite the existence of genuine issues of material fact regarding whether the insured had reasonably failed to submit to an independent medical examination. In view of this fact, the Fifth District stated that the insurer was not precluded from presenting its defense. This comment, however, was clearly dicta as it was not necessary to the disposition of the case. In any event, the Eleventh Circuit Court is bound to follow the precedent in this District, *see Pardo v. State*, 596 *So.* 2d *665* (Fla. 1992), and its failure to do so was error; the error resulted in a miscarriage of justice.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court should accept jurisdiction of the instant action to resolve a conflict between the decision of the Third District and other District Courts regarding the effect of a PIP insurer's failure to pay a claim for benefits within 30 days absent "reasonable proof" that the amounts are not owed. Under the decisions of the First and Fourth Districts, such failure subjects an insurer to statutory penalties of interest and attorney's fees, but does not change the burdens of proof or constitute a waiver of available defenses. In the Third District, any failure to pay within 30 days, absent "reasonable proof" consistenting solely of an expert report essentially precludes any defense to payment and requires an automatic judgment for the claimant. As a result, conflict exists which this Court should review.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION **BASED** ON DIRECT **AND** EXPRESS CONFLICT BETWEEN THE THIRD DISTRICT'S DECISION AND OTHER DISTRICT COURT DECISIONS RELATED TO THE INTERPRETATION OF THE THIRTY (30) **DAY** PAYMENTS PROVISIONS OF THE PIP STATUTES

UAIC respectfully submits that acceptance of jurisdiction to review the District Court's decision is necessary and appropriate because it is in conflict with decisions of other district courts of appeal. The Third District Court, extending its earlier *en banc* ruling in *Fortune Ins.* Co. *v. Pacheco*, 695 So. 2d 394 (Fla. 3d DCA 1997), held that the PIP insurer losses its right to defend a claim for benefits after thirty days have expired without payment. Other District Courts, however, have read the same statutes differently, narrowly interpreted the *Pacheco* decision, and concluded that the failure to pay only subjects an insurer to statutory penalties of interest and attorney's fees. *See Jones v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Ins. Co.*, 694 So.2d 394 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997); *Fortune Insurance* Co. *v. Everglades Diagnostic, Inc.*, 721 So. 2d 384 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998); and *Derius v Allstate Indemnity Co.*, 723 So. 2d 271 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998).

Although it did not directly address *Fortune* or *Derius*, the decision under review announced a rule of law that conflicts with the rule of law set forth in those decisions. In addition, although the Third District's opinion did discuss and factually distinguish *Jones*, it also announced a rule of statutory law that conflicts with the statutory interpretation announced In *Jones*. Under the circumstances, (continued...)

In *Jones*, the accident occurred on April 1, 1995, PIP benefits were sought on April 6, 1995, and paid through June 29, 1995. As a result of injuries, which the insured's orthopedic surgeon related to the accident, the insured underwent knee surgery on September 28, 1995. The surgery bills were submitted on October 13, 1995. The insurer did not pay the bills within thirty days due to its concerns that the surgery might not be related to the accident. Rather, it scheduled the insured for a physical examination on November 30, 1995. The insured then filed suit on November 20, 1995, seeking PIP benefits and did not attend the physical examination. Jones alleged that the insured had violated § 627.737, because it failed to make payments on the claim within the thirty-day period provided for in the statute. Jones, 694 So. 2d at 166. State Farm's moved for summary judgment asserting that it had been relieved of its obligation to the insured because of the insured's failure to attend that scheduled examination. The trial court granted its motion.

On appeal, the District Court held:

Although we cannot credit Jones' contention that State Farm'sfailure topay Jones'surgical bills within thirty days relieved him of any further obligation under the policy and requires that judgment be entered in his favor, we do agree with Jones that the summary judgment in favor of State Farm must be reversed. First of all, it is apparent that State Farm

¹(...continued) conflictjurisdiction exists. See e.g. Hardee v. State, 534 So. 2d 706 (Fla. 1988); City of Miami v. Fla. Literary Dist. Corp., 486 So. 2d 569 (Fla. 1988).

did not have reasonable proof that it was not responsible for payment of Jones' surgical bills. Despite State Farm's heroic effort on appeal to catalogue any fact or circumstance that might engender a suspicion that the knee surgery was not causally related to the accident, the best that even State Farm can say is that "State Farm had 'reasonable proof to question the relationship of Jones' left knee surgery. . . . "This does not meet the statutory test of "reasonable proof to establish that the insurer is not responsible for the payment. . . . Thus, State Farm is exposed to the statutory penalties attendant to an "overdue" claim. State Farm does not, however, lose its right to contest the claim, For this reason, State Farm's failure to pay the claim in thirty days does not relieve Jones from the obligation to submit to an independent medical examination.

166 So. 2d at **166** (emphasis).

In **1998**, the Fourth District made a similar conclusion regarding the question of whether the "30 day overdue" provision was applicable to demands for arbitration under Florida Statute **627.736**(5). In *Fortune Ins. Co. v. Everglades Diagnostics*, *Inc.*, **721 So. 2d 384** (Fla. 4th **DCA** 1998), the County Court relied on the Third District's decision in *Pacheco* to conclude that a carrier lost its right to request arbitration under the PIP statute because the demand was not made within the 30-day period. On certiorari review of the circuit court appellate division's affirmance, without opinion, the Fourth District found that "the [claimants]have simply read too much into the **30** day overdue provision." The Court stated that:

Section 627.736(4)(b) says that PIP benefits paid under this section" shall be overdue if not paid within 30 days. . . . " 627.736(4)(c) says that "all overdue payments shall bear simple interest at the rate of 10 per cent per year." As we understand these two provisions, they merely make the PIP insurer liablefor interest on such claims if payment is not

made within 30 days from notice. See Martinez v. Fortune Ins, Co., 684 So. 2d 201 (Fla. 4th DCA 1996) (statute makes claims for PIP benefits overdue when not paid within 30 days from receipt; failure of insured to pay claim within 30 days subjects insurer to interest on claim). Hence, appropriately read, the function of the statute is to define when interest begins to accrue on unpaid PIP benefits.

721 So. 2d at 384. See also, Allstate Ins. Co. v. Gulf Diagnostics, Inc., 724 So. 2d 713 (Fla. 4th DCA 1999) (certiorari granted to compel arbitration pursuant to Everglades). Thus, the Fourth District explained its earlier decision in Martinez and made a specific ruling with respect to the purpose and intent of the 30 day provision and the penalty for non-compliance. The Court concluded that subparagraph (4) did not mention the arbitration provisions of subparagraph (5), or vice versa, so it was simply not free to engraft an additional consequence with respect to the 30 day provision onto the statute where none was otherwise stated. The Everglades Court distinguished the Third District's decision in Pacheco, which it found had no relevance to the arbitration issue, and limited the application of Pacheco when it stated:

Pacheco merely holds that the insured could not be required to submit all supporting medical records before the 30 day period for payment began to run.

721 So. 2d at 385, n.2.

The Fourth District in *Derius v. Allstate Indemnity* Co., 723 So. 2d 271 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998), dealt with a withdrawal of benefits for chiropractic treatment. The

examination and report of another chiropractor that additional treatments were neither reasonable nor necessary. The issue submitted the jury was whether any of the chiropractic treatment after June 7, 1994 was necessary and, if so, the total reasonable charges for that care. After a lengthy trial, the jury returned a verdict for Allstate, The county court certified a question, which the district court restated as follows.

TO RECOVER MEDICAL BENEFITS IN A LAWSUIT UNDER SECTION 627.736, FLORIDA STATUTES (SUPP. 1994), MUST THE PLAINTIFF PROVE BY THE GREATER WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE THAT THE EXPENSES SOUGHT ARE BOTH REASONABLE AND FOR NECESSARY MEDICAL SERVICES?

723 So. 2d at 271. The court answered the question in the affirmative and stated:

Under this statute, an insurer is not liable for any medical expense to the extent that it is not a reasonable charge for a particular service or if the service is not necessary. In a lawsuit seeking benefits under the statute, both reasonableness and necessity are essential elements of a plaintiff's case. There is nothing in the PIP statute suggesting a legislative intent to alter the normal dynamics of a lawsuit by placing the burden on the defendant in a PIP case to prove that a proposed charge was unreasonable or that a given service was not necessary.

723 So. 2d at 274 (emphasis added). In addition, the court affirmed the denial of *plaintiff's* motion for directed verdict on the basis that: Allstate's reliance on the IME chiropractor's letter to withdraw payment to *Derius'* chiropractor was in compliance with the requirements of Section 627.736(7)(a). *Id.* at 275.

Thus, under *Jones*, the effect of non-compliance with the thirty-day payment requirement is clear -- the failure to pay, unless there is reasonable proof to establish that the insurer is not responsible for the payment, exposes the insurer to the statutory penalties for an overdue claim, but does not preclude the insurer from contesting the claim in the civil action. Under *Fortune*, overdue payments are also only subject to statutory interest and fees and the thirty day provision is not engrafted onto other statutory requirements. Under *Derius*, the requirement of an expert report does not change the burdens of proof at trial. The decision on review rejects those rules and extends its *Pacheco* decision in a manner that not only alters the traditional burdens of proof, but engrafts the thirty day provisions of the statute in a manner that other courts have simply refused to follow.

CONCLUSION

UAIC respectfully submits that acceptance of jurisdiction herein is appropriate to resolve conflicting interpretations related to the provision or denial of PIP coverage benefits that affects many citizens of the State of Florida and the insurance industry state-wide. Acceptance of jurisdiction over the instant action in order to obtain uniformity of decision on this important issue, is appropriate.