FILED DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX FEB 1 8 2000 CLERK, SUPREME COURT BY_____

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SCOO-112 DCA CASE NOS. 99-01348, 99-01481

STATE FARM FIRE AND CASUALTY COMPANY,

Defendant/Petitioner,

V.

JUANA MARIA PEREZ,

Plaintiff/Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, THIRD DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JOHN H. RUIZ, P.A. John H. Ruiz, Esquire Luisa M. Linares, Esquire Maloy Castro Morales, Esquire Attorneys for Respondent 198 NW 37th Avenue Miami, Florida 33125 (305) 649-0020

CERTIFICATE OF TYPE SIZE AND STYLE

INTRODUCTION

Throughout this Brief, the Respondent, Juana Maria Perez, will be referred to as "Perez." Her PIP carrier, the Petitioner, State Farm Fire and Casualty Company, will be referred to as "State Farm."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

As reflected in the decision of the District Court below, Perez sought certiorari review of a Circuit Court Appellate Division decision reversing a final summary judgment. The District Court consolidated the <u>Perez</u> case with the case of <u>Rodriguez v. United Automobile Insurance Company</u>. These two cases dealt with the issue of whether an insurer under Fla. Stat. \$627.736 must obtain the report required under Fla. Stat. §627.736(7) constituting "reasonable proof" within 30 days of receiving written notice of a covered loss and amount of same before the insurer could defend on the basis that the medical bills are not reasonable, not related and/or not necessary.

The facts as set forth in the opinion:'

On March 24, 1996, Ms. Perez sustained personal injuries as a result of an automobile accident. She sought

¹ State Farm has cited facts that are not in the District Court's opinion although this Court has repeatedly emphasized that, for the purpose of determining conflict jurisdiction, it is limited to the facts as stated in the District Court's opinion. <u>Hardee v. State</u>, 534 So. 2d 707, 708 n.* (Fla. 1988); <u>Dep't of Health and Rehab.</u> <u>Serv. v. Nat'l Adoption Counseling Serv., Inc.</u>, 498 So. 2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986).

treatment for her injuries and submitted medical bills to State Farm under the PIP coverage of her automobile insurance policy. State Farm failed to pay the bills; Ms. Perez filed a lawsuit against State Farm for payment of these bills.

1

Ms. Perez moved for summary judgment on the grounds that the defendant had no reasonable proof to establish that it was not responsible for the payment of her claimed medical bills within the thirty-day statutory period. She argued "that failure to obtain such proof within the statutory period means the insurer must pay the bills, in their entirety, at the expiration of the 30-day period."

The trial court entered summary judgment in Ms. Perez's favor, ruling that it is the "responsibility on the part of an insurer to pay within 30 days absent reasonable proof within that time that they are not responsible for payment." On appeal, the circuit court appellate division reversed the trial court in **a** two-to-one decision although State Farm conceded "that it failed to obtain reasonable proof that it is not responsible within the 30-day period."

The Third District quashed the decision by the Circuit Court in its Appellate

Capacity. In support of its ruling, the District Court found:

Section 627.736(4)(b), Florida Statutes (1997), provides that PIP insurance benefits "shall be overdue if not **paid** within 30 days after the insurer is furnished written notice of the fact of a covered loss **and** of the amount of same." This section also provides that "any payment shall not be deemed overdue when the insurer has reasonable proof to establish that the insurer is not responsible for the payment, notwithstanding that written notice has been furnished to the insurer." The PIP statute <u>clearly requires</u> that the insurer must obtain, <u>within thirty</u> <u>days</u>, a medical **report** providing "reasonable proof' that it is not responsible for payment. Here, the insurers failed to obtain such a report and, hence, must promptly pay the claim plus accrued interest.

The insurers' contentions that while they failed to obtain a report within the statutory period, they can only be required to pay interest and attorney's fees is not persuasive. Since 1974, Florida courts have uniformly held that:

> the statutory language is clear and unambiguous. The insurance company has thirty days in which to verify the claim after receipt of an application for benefits. There is no provision in the statute to toll this time limitation. The burden is clearly upon the insurer to authenticate the claim within the statutory time period. To rule otherwise would render the recently enacted "no fault" insurance statute a "no-pay" plan--a result we are sure was not intended by the Pacheco, 695 So.2d at 395 legislature. (emphasis added) (quoting Dunmore v. Interstate Fire Ins. Co., 301 So.2d 502, 502 (Fla. 1st DCA 1974)).

In <u>Pacheco</u>, Fortune Insurance sought to require that the claimant furnish all medical records before the thirty-day period would begin to run. <u>See Pacheco</u>, 695 So.2d at 396. However, this court held that this interpretation would totally obliterate the thirty-day statutory provision. <u>Pacheco</u> goes on to advise that "once an insurer receives notice of a loss and medical expenses, it must pay within thirty days unless, pursuant to Section 627.736(4)(b), it has obtained reasonable proof to believe that it is not responsible for the payment." <u>Pacheco</u>, 695 So.2d at 395 (emphasis added).

Based on <u>Pacheco</u>, the trial court in both cases before us correctly concluded that "reading the PIP statute in pari <u>materia</u>, the insurer must obtain the

required report within 30 days." Having failed to do so, the insurers must pay the claims. The final summary judgment in Ms. Rodriguez's favor is therefore affirmed. In contrast, the appellate decision in Perez disregarded this court's holding in Pacheco. Instead, it followed Jones v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Co., 694 So.2d 165 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997). Jones, however, is not dispositive of the issue in this case. Jones addressed a summary judgment granted despite the existence of genuine issues of material fact regarding whether the insured had reasonably failed to submit to an independent medical examination. In view of this fact, the Fifth District stated that the insurer was not precluded from presenting its defense. This comment, however, was clearly dicta as it was not necessary to the disposition of the case.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court should not accept jurisdiction of the instant action since there is no direct and express conflict between the decision of the Third District and other District Courts. The Third District held that pursuant to Fla. Stat. §627.736 that where the only defense by an insurer is that the medical treatment was not reasonable, related and necessary, the insurer must obtain the report required under Fla. Stat. §627.736(7) constituting "reasonable proof" within 30 days of receiving written notice of a covered loss and of the amount of same before it can defend on the basis that the medical bills are not reasonable, related and necessary. The Fifth and Fourth District have not addressed the issue decided by the Third in the case *subjudice* and as such, have not held otherwise. The cases cited by State Farm are factually and legally distinguishable. The first case dealt with whether an insurer is required to attend an IME. The second case dealt with who had the burden of proof once the insurer had complied with the §627.736 by obtaining a report based on an IME constituting "reasonable proof" that the medical treatment was not reasonable, related and necessary. The third case dealt with the time frame in which an insurer can demand arbitration of a PIP claim. There is simply no express and direct conflict between the Third District and other Districts.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT EXERCISE JURISDICTION BECAUSE THE DISTRICT COURT'S OPINION DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH JONES, DERIUS OR EVERGLADES.

Perez respectfully submits that this Court should not accept jurisdiction to review the Third District's decision since there is no express and direct conflict with decisions of other district courts of appeal. <u>See Art. V, §3(b)(3)</u>, Fla. Const. (1980); Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). To constitute such a conflict, the opinion must (1) announce a rule of law that conflicts with other appellate expressions of law, or (2) apply a rule of law to produce a different result in a case involving substantially the same controlling facts as a prior case. <u>City of Jacksonville v. Florida First Nat'l Bank of Jacksonville</u>, 339 *So.* 2d 632, 633 (Fla.

5 JOHN H. RUIZ, P.A. 198 NW 37th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33125 (*305*)649-0020 1976). The conflict must appear "within the four corners of the decision." <u>Reaves</u> <u>v. State</u>, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). Under Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), this Court's jurisdiction to review a case involving express and direct conflict is discretionary. Therefore, this Court must decide not only whether jurisdiction exists, but also whether to exercise it.

Contrary to State Farm's claim, the decision under review is not in conflict with Jones v. State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co., 694 So. 2d 394 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997), Derius v. Allstate Indemnity Co., 723 So. 2d 271 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998), and Fortune Ins. Co. v. Everglades Diagnostic, Inc., 721 So. 2d 384 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998). None of the cases cited by State Farm addresses the issue that was on appeal in the sub judice case; therefore, there is no express and direct conflict with the decisions of the Third District and other District Courts.

The first case cited by State Farm, Jones V. State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co., 694 So. 2d 394 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997), is factually and legally distinguishable from the case at bar. In Jones, the trial court granted the defendant's motion for final summary judgment because the plaintiff had failed to attend an independent medical examination ("IME"). The District Court reversed the trial court since there were issues of fact as to whether Jones' refusal to attend the IME was unreasonable. The Fifth District did not have before it the issue of whether State Farm must have "reasonable proof" within 30 days of receiving notice of a covered loss and amount of same before it can defend on the basis that the medical bills are not reasonable, not related and/or not necessary. The Third District properly found that any discussion by the Fifth District as to consequences of not having "reasonable proof" within 30 days of receiving written notice of the fact of a covered loss and amount of same was dicta. <u>Perez v. State Farm Fire and Cas. Co.</u>, 1999 WL 816552 (Fla. 3d DCA 1999). Accordingly, there is no express and direct conflict with the <u>sub iudice</u> opinion.

Similarly, in the second case cited by State Farm, <u>Derius v. Allstate</u> <u>Indemnitv Co.</u>, 723 So. 2d 271 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998), there is no express and direct conflict with the <u>sub iudice</u> opinion. In <u>Derius</u>, the court considered Fla. Stat. §627.736(7) and how that statute affected the traditional notions of burden of proof. Interestingly, the factual account establishes that Allstate paid for three months worth of treatment starting in March of 1994 and obtained a report on June 7, 1994, which arguably constituted "reasonable proof." <u>Id.</u> at 272. Hence, there was no 30-day issue because the defendant paid for all the medical bills prior to the IME and cut-off PIP benefits for any medical bills subsequent to the IME. Since the defendant had the requisite IME to cut-off benefits, the issue was whether it was the plaintiff or defendant who had the burden to prove the reasonableness and

> 7 JOHN **H. RUIZ P.A.** 198 NW 37th Avenue, Miami, Florida 33 125 (305) 649-0020

medical necessity of the medical bills. The Fourth District Court of Appeal held that the plaintiff had the burden. Because <u>Derius</u> involved different issues than the case sub judice, there is no express and direct conflict between the case at bar and <u>Derius</u>.

The third case cited by State Farm, Fortune Ins. Co. v. Everglades Diagnostice, Inc., 721 So. 2d 384 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998), is also factually and legally distinguishable to the case at bar. In Everglades the insurer received medical claims that it denied within thirty days of their receipt, but demanded arbitration a year later. The court decided that the insurer could compel arbitration after thirty days had passed from the date when it received notice of a claim and the amount of same.² The issue was not whether the insured was required to have "reasonable proof' within 30 days. In fact, the insurer denied the claims within thirty days and thus, could arguably allege that it had "reasonable proof' within the statutory time frame. The court in Everglades held that the arbitration provision did not require that arbitration be requested within thirty days and therefore, there is no "30-day requirement on the enforcement of the subsection (5) arbitration provision." Everglades at 385. The Everglades case simply dealt with the time frame in which

² This Court recently decided that the arbitration provision of \$627.736, Fla. Stat,, was unconstitutional. <u>Nationwide Mut. Fire Ins, Co. v. Pinnacle Medical, Inc.</u>, 2000 WL 123791 (Fla. 2000).

an insured could demand arbitration. Therefore, the case at bar and <u>Everglades</u> reviewed different sections of 5627.736, Fla. Stat., to wit: <u>Everglades</u> looked at the arbitration provision under subsection (5) and the <u>sub iudice</u> decision looked at the conditions precedent an insurer must meet before it can deny a claim under subsection (4). Accordingly, there is no express and direct conflict between the holdings of these two cases.

State Farm has not met its burden of proving that there is an express and direct conflict between the opinion the Third District in the case at bar and the opinions of the Fourth and Fifth District. In fact, State Farm made this same argument to the Third District, which was rejected by the court.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons stated above, this Court should decline to exercise jurisdiction.